
 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL - REGULAR SESSION AGENDA PACKET 
Monday, December 5, 2022 

 

City of North Plains 

Agenda 

City Council - Regular Session Meeting 

Monday, December 5, 2022 @ 7:00 PM 

Jessie Mays Community Center 

and also via ZOOM 

   

 

 
Page 

 
1
. 

LOGIN INFORMATION TO ATTEND VIA ZOOM 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81324102969?pwd=WjkwazNrdmtHTnFMd09QRm
g5dWx6UT09 

Meeting ID: 813 2410 2969 

Passcode: 504492 

  
Phone in (no internet) 
253-215-8782 

Meeting ID: 813 2410 2969 

Passcode: 504492 

 

 
2. CALL TO ORDER  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
4. ROLL CALL  

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

(The items on the Consent Agenda are normally considered in a single motion. Any 
item may be removed for separate consideration upon request by any member of the 
Council.) 

 

 
 A. Res. No. 2207 - Updating Signer List for Heritage Bank Accounts 

*adding William Reid & Robin Doughty 

*removing Blake Boyles & William Worthy  
□  Res. No. 2207 - Adding Doughty and Reid and removing Boyles, Worthy 
and Baker from the Heritage Bank signer list 

3 - 4 

 
 B. Res. No. 2210 - Reappointing Heather LaBonte to the Planning 

Commission  
□  Res. No. 2210 - Reappointing Heather LaBonte to the Planning Commission 
for a term thru December 31 2026 

5 - 6 

 
 C. Approval of December 5, 2022 City Council Regular Session Agenda   

 
 D. Approval of November 21, 2022 City Council Minutes.  

□  City Council - Regular Session - 21 Nov 2022 - Minutes 

7 - 12 

 

Page 1 of 47

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81324102969?pwd=WjkwazNrdmtHTnFMd09QRmg5dWx6UT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81324102969?pwd=WjkwazNrdmtHTnFMd09QRmg5dWx6UT09


 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL - REGULAR SESSION AGENDA PACKET 
Monday, December 5, 2022 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

We encourage those wishing to comment to do so in advance of the meeting by 
emailing comments to info@northplains.org.Comments will be read into the record. 
Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may be recognized at this 
time. 

 

 
7. PRESENTATION  

 
 A. Public Works Facility Design Update: Process Architecture  

 
 
8. RESOLUTIONS:  

 
 A. Res. No. 2208 - PGE Franchise Agreement  

□  Res 2208 PGE Franchise Agreement Staff Report 12.5.22 

□  Res. No. 2208 - PGE Franchise Agreement with Exhibit A 

13 - 37 

 
 B. Res. No. 2209 - ARPA Funds  

□  Res 2209 ARPA Spending Framework Staff Report 12.5.22 

□  Res. No. 2209 - ARPA Spending Plan 

38 - 41 

 
9. REPORTS  

 
 A. City Manager Report  

□  City Manager Staff Report 12.05.2022 

42 - 43 

 
 B. Council Reports   

 
 C. Review December 2022 and January 2023 Council Calendar  

□  2022 December Calendar All Meetings 

□  2023 January Calendar All Meetings 

□  2022 Calendar of all NP City Meetings & Ex Officio duties 

□  2022 Council Committee Appointments 

44 - 47 

 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
 A. 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transaction   

 
11. ADJOURNMENT:  

 

*****  

  

North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals. The City will also endeavor to 
provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, if requested, at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. To obtain services, please call City Hall at (503) 647-5555 

***** 

 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at: 

Jessie Mays Community Center - 30975 NW Hillcrest Street  North Plains, OR 

                     

The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.:                       
Monday, December 19, 2022      Tuesday, January 3, 2023      Tuesday, January 17, 2023 

 

Page 2 of 47



Resolution No:  2207 
Bank Signers - updated 
Adopted:  December 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2207 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON ADDING WILLIAM REID AND REMOVING BLAKE BOYLES, WILLIAM 

WORTHY, AND JESSE BAKER FROM THE HERITAGE BANK SIGNER LIST 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Plains has a bank account with Heritage Bank, 
formerly named Premier Community Bank; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the following positions can endorse checks: Mayor, Council 
President, City Manager, Finance Director and Library Director; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following position can open accounts or safe deposit boxes: City 
Manager; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Blake Boyles has retired from the Public Works Director position and 
should be removed from the bank signer list; and 
 
  WHEREAS, William Worthy is no longer the Library Director and should be 
removed from the bank signer list; and 
 

WHEREAS, Jesse Baker is no longer in the City-employed Police Chief position 
and should be removed from the bank signer list; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Robin Doughty is the Library Director and should be added to the 
bank signer list; and 
 

WHEREAS, William Reid is the Finance Director and should be added to the 
bank signer list. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
HEREBY RESOLVES: 
 

The following individuals can endorse checks:  
• Teri Lenahan, Mayor 
• Russ Sheldon, Council President 
• Andy Varner, City Manager 
• Robin Doughty, Library Director 
• William Reid, Finance Director 

 
The following individual can open accounts or safe deposit boxes:  

• Andy Varner, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 47



Resolution No:  2207 
Bank Signers - updated 
Adopted:  December 5, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December, 2022. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

Teri Lenahan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

BY:  ______________________________________ 
Lori Lesmeister, City Recorder 

Page 4 of 47



 
Resolution No. 2210 
Adopted:  December 5, 2022 
Planning Commission Re-Appointment Heather LaBonte 
Thru Dec. 31, 2026 

RESOLUTION NO. 2210 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, RE-APPOINTING HEATHER LABONTE TO THE NORTH PLAINS 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Plains adopted a Zoning and 
Development Code Ordinance which sets forth in Section 3 the City Council is to appoint 
persons to the Planning Commission by Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains has a Planning Commission consisting of 
residents, property owners and business owners in the community; and  
 

WHEREAS, Heather LaBonte has each submitted an application for re-
appointment; and 

 
WHEREAS, Procedural rules 1.05.190(A)5 states a sitting member of the 

Commission may be reappointed by the Council without an open application process if 
the member of the commission requests reappointment in writing, and the City Council 
waives the requirement for an open application process. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, that Heather LaBonte is reappointed to the Planning 
Commission for a four-year term expiring December 31, 2026. 

 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

Teri Lenahan, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Lori Lesmeister, City Recorder 

Page 5 of 47



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS
Submit Application to: 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 or 
info@northplains.org 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Information provided in this application is considered public and may be used upon announcing your appointment.  The 
Planning Commission usually meets once a month for approximately 2-3 hours.  From time to time, special meetings are 
held to meet deadlines or conduct public hearings.  Preparation for each meeting usually involves an equal amount of time. 
The Planning Commission’s regular meetings are the second Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m.  

Each position is a four-year term.  If the application is submitted to fill a vacancy, the appointee will serve for the time 
remaining in that term.  Each applicant is interviewed by the Planning Commission and the City Council.  The 
Commission will relay its recommendation to the City Council for review at the Council’s next scheduled meeting.  The 
Council interview will occur prior to making its appointment to the Commission.  Plan to attend both meetings for your 
application consideration. 

 Resident/ Property owner  

 Business Owner within City 

 Representative of Property within City 

Explain: ______________________________________ 

Name: _________________________________________________________________ Date:    

Mailing Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address if different:     

City: ______________________ State:        Zip:         Work Phone:           Cell Phone: _______________ 

E-mail Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________

Occupation:  

Please answer the following questions.  There is no “right” answer to any question.  If additional space is needed, use the 
back of this page or attach a separate page. 

1. Why would you like to serve on the Planning Commission? ___________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

2. What do you think are the most important issues now facing North Plains? _______________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

 ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

3. Do you have any special interests or qualifications that you would bring to the Planning Commission? _________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

Thank you for applying.  Your interest is appreciated! 
Page 6 of 47



 

MINUTES 
City Council - Regular Session Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2022 - 7:00 PM 

Jessie Mays Community Center 
And also via Zoom 

 
COUNCIL 
MEMBERS: 

Mayor Teri Lenahan; Council President Russ Sheldon; Councilors: 
James Fage, Robert "Butch" Kindel, Jr., Cameron Martinez, Trista 
Papen, Rickey Smith,  

 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Andy Varner, Finance Director Bill Reid, Library 

Director Robin Doughty Police Chief James Haxton, Planning 
Director Steve Miller, City Recorder Lori Lesmeister 

 
OTHER:   
   
  

 
1 LOGIN INFORMATION TO ATTEND VIA ZOOM 

  
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86960836028?pwd=YTJGQ2l3ZUl2RzBrOVM1Tm9iaWJqdz09 
Meeting ID: 869 6083 6028 
Passcode: 100123 
 
Phone in (no internet) 
253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 869 6083 6028 
Passcode: 100123 

 
2 CALL TO ORDER:  7:01 pm 

 
3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4 ROLL CALL  
 a) Councilors James Fage and Cameron Martinez excused  

 
5 CONSENT AGENDA: 

(The items on the Consent Agenda are normally considered in a single motion. Any item 
may be removed for separate consideration upon request by any member of the Council.)  

 a) Approval of November 21, 2022, City Council Regular Session Agenda   
 b) Approval of November 7, 2022, City Council Minutes.   

Page 7 of 47



City Council - Regular Session Minutes 
November 21, 2022 

 
 c) Resolution No. 2203 - Reappointing Michael Accuardi to the Economic 

Development Committee 
for a term through December 31, 2026   

 d) Reappointing Tom Hauth to the Planning Commission 
for a term through December 31, 2026   

 e) Resolution No. 2205 - Portland State University IGA   
 f) Resolution No. 2206  - Recology - Good Neighbor Agreement   

Move to approve the Consent Agenda with the correction of Planning Director Steve 
Miller's last name in Item 7D   
Moved by Councilor Sheldon.  Second by Councilor Papen.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 

 
6 PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 a) No public in attendance at Jessie Mays 

No public on Zoom call  
 
7 STAFF REPORTS  
 a) Library Department Monthly Report 

 
Library Director Robin Doughty reported that there was good attendance at the 
November 16, 2022, Library Board Meeting where there was discussion from current 
members of the Friends of the Library on what was needed to continue to group.  
There were nine new people interested in becoming new members of the Friends of 
the Library Board and it was discussed on how to make the transition on a smooth 
one, with a date of the end of June 2023 noted for the new group to take over.  
Mayor Lenahan said that she feels the Friends of the Library is a great asset to North 
Plains and the Library and she is very pleased to see so many people interested in 
continuing to carry on the tradition of the group.   

 b) Police Department Monthly Report 
 
Chief Haxton said that the deputies have been focusing on school zones during the 
past several weeks, as well as spending time inside the schools talking to the kids in 
classrooms.  
Councilor Smith asked about the fact that the Chief's report shows 59 traffic stops 
with 54 warnings given. Smith wondered if there is a way to tell how many of those 
are repeat offenders. Chief Haxton said that is unknown, but the deputies are taking 
those opportunities to educate those that they are giving the warnings to with the 
hopes that they will not become repeat offenders. Councilor Papen thanked Chief 
Haxton for their visibility around town of late.    

 c) Community Development Monthly Report 
 
Planning Director Steve Miller said that he hopes that the information that was 
provided at the November 16, 2022, Far West Fiber Neighborhood meeting helped 
the residents of the Sunset Ridge subdivision feel better about the future project. 

Page 8 of 47



City Council - Regular Session Minutes 
November 21, 2022 

 
Miller said that the city will be holding neighborhood meetings for the planned Public 
Works building as well as the Ghost Creek Trail project, with the letters for those 
being mailed out in the coming weeks.   
City Manager Varner said that work on the parking lot at Jessie Mays will start 
shortly. Varner said the city received a $250,000 grant that will be used to put in 
sidewalks on the south side of Commercial Street between Glencoe and Main Street, 
and if possible, maybe some spots on the north side of Commercial if we can stretch 
the funds. 
Mayor Lenahan asked if the owners of the Roll Tide Property have secured any 
tenants for their property behind the Taco Bell yet. Finance Director Bill Reid said that 
they do have some letters of interest at this time, and they are all smaller, local food 
and beverage type businesses. Reid said that he feels they are getting close to 
securing tenants for the property. 
Councilor Smith said he was unable to attend the Far West neighborhood meeting, 
so he asked Councilor Papen how she felt the meeting went and her opinion on the 
information that was given. Councilor Papen said that she gained a lot of clarity from 
the information provided at the meeting, however she does still have concerns about 
the additional 30+ trucks per day going down West Union Road. Papen said that 
knowing that the property is, and has been, zoned for that type of use, she feels that 
the updated plan and information that Far West presented was thoughtful and 
showed that they listened to the concerns and feedback of Sunset Ridge residents at 
the previous meeting. Papen said that the new proposed plan has fewer bays and 
the layout has been changed to break up the traffic flow, as well as to include a turn 
lane into the property. Councilor Smith asked if there will be a traffic study done by 
Washington County. Planning Director Miller said yes, there will be a traffic study 
done.  
Brief discussion ensued. Planning Director reminded all that the city has not received 
any formal application for this property to date.  
Councilor Papen asked about the land use application on West Union Road by 
Frank's Excavation. City Manager Varner said the property is just west of the city 
reservoir and it will their new headquarters that will include a small office and space 
for materials and equipment storage.   

 d) Finance Department Monthly Report 
 
Finance Director Bill Reid reported that most operating funds are at or below budget. 
The plan is to bring a supplemental budget to Council in January. Water revenues 
are back to normal after a warmer than normal October. Over $11,000 in overdue 
balances were paid down during the month of October. We are still working on 
finalizing the audits. The Water Study will be starting shortly. We rolled out the TUF 
to businesses November 1, 2022, and have had just a handful of calls from 
businesses with questions about their new rates. We have started receiving property 
tax revenues.  
Councilor Smith asked if we know how many people have moved into homes in 
Brynhill to date. Reid said we can get that information by looking at new water 
accounts each month based on addresses in the Brynhill subdivision.  

Page 9 of 47



City Council - Regular Session Minutes 
November 21, 2022 

 
Councilor Papen asked how the revenue in the Fuel Tax Fund is doing. City Manager 
Varner said that we are at about 85% of last year's revenue at this time. Varner said 
the high price of gas is a contributing factor.  
  

 
8 ORDINANCES:  
 a) Ordinance 484 - Amended EOA and Comp Plan Text Amendment 

Second Reading & Adoption   
Move to do second reading of Ordinance No. 484 by Title Only   
Moved by Councilor Sheldon.  Second by Councilor Kindel.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 
  
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 484   
Moved by Councilor Smith.  Second by Councilor Papen.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 
  

 b) Ordinance 485 - Amended Zoning & Development Code - Marijuana 
Second Reading & Adoption   
Move to do second reading of Ordinance No. 485 by Title Only   
Moved by Councilor Sheldon.  Second by Councilor Papen.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 
  
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 485   
Moved by Councilor Sheldon.  Second by Councilor Kindel.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 
  

 c) Ordinance 486 - Amended Zoning & Development Code - Psilocybin 
Second Reading   
Move to do second reading of Ordinance No. 486 by Title Only   
Moved by Councilor Papen.  Second by Councilor Sheldon.  
Motion was approved 4 to 1.   
Councilors Papen, Kindel, Sheldon, and Mayor Lenahan all voting Aye.  
Councilor Smith voting Nay.  
Councilors Martinez and Fage absent. 
  
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 486   
Moved by Councilor Kindel.  Second by Councilor Sheldon.  
Motion was approved 4 to 1.   
Councilors Papen, Kindel, Sheldon, and Mayor Lenahan all voting Aye.  
Councilor Smith voting Nay.  
Councilors Martinez and Fage absent. 
 
 

Page 10 of 47



City Council - Regular Session Minutes 
November 21, 2022 

 
  

 d) Ordinance 487 - Short-Term Rentals Amending Zoning Code 
Second Reading   
Move to do second reading of Ordinance No. 487 by Title Only   
Moved by Councilor Sheldon.  Second by Councilor Papen.  
Motion was approved 4 to 1.   
Councilors Papen, Kindel, Sheldon, and Mayor Lenahan all voting Aye.  
Councilor Smith voting Nay.  
Councilors Martinez and Fage absent.  
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 487   
Moved by Councilor Kindel.  Second by Councilor Papen.  
Motion was approved unanimously. 

 
9 REPORTS  
 a) City Manager Report 

 
City Manager Varner thanked all of those that attended the Veterans Day Ceremony 
at the Veterans Park on November 11, 2022. Varner also thanked the Knights of 
Pythias, the Public Works Staff and all the volunteers that helped to put the ceremony 
on.  
The annual Jingle thru North Plains will be Thursday, December 1, 2022.  
The community survey will be finalized this week and will be shared with council in 
the coming days before it is sent out to the community. The plan is to do a community 
survey like this on an annual basis. 
Unfortunately, the candidate that we had hired for the Public Works Director position 
has decided to stay at his current position in Rockaway Beach. The city staff will 
continue to work together to continue to get everything done while we continue our 
search for someone to fill the position.  
Councilor Kindel asked if the city might consider hiring a parttime person for the 
Public Works Director position. Varner said that it is imperative that we hire someone 
that has a Water Certification, and we just haven't been able to find anyone that has 
that.  
Discussion ensued.  
Councilor Sheldon asked about the item on City Manager Varner's staff report that 
notes several hours spent at Jessie Mays going over project questions. Sheldon 
asked what types of questions were asked. Varner said they did a walk-around of the 
entire job site and things that were mentioned included things like possible drainage 
issues in the parking lot, trees that may need trimmed, or tree roots that may be in 
the way of where a light pedestal may need to go. 
   

 b) Council Reports 
 
City Smith attended the Library Board meeting on November 16, 2022. Smith 
thanked the Knights of Pythias for sponsoring the Veterans Day Event. He would like 
to see earlier, and more promotion of the event next year.   

Page 11 of 47



City Council - Regular Session Minutes 
November 21, 2022 

 
 c) Review December 2022 Council Calendar 

 
The tree lighting will be in front of the Senior Center immediately following the Jingle 
Parade on Dec. 1, 2022. Hot chocolate and cookies will be served.  
Mayor Lenahan said that following the Dec. 19, 2022, City Council meeting there will 
be a small social gathering for the Council. 
  

 
10 ADJOURNMENT:  8:04 pm 

Next meeting is December 5, 2022, with a 6:00 pm Work Session 
 
 
 
  
  
  
Teri Lenahan, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
Lori Lesmeister, City Recorder  Date Approved ________________ 

 

Page 12 of 47



    

 

 
 

Date:  December 5, 2022 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Andy Varner 

Subject: Resolution 2208: Approve the Utility Franchise Agreement with Portland General 
Electric 

Request:  Adopt Resolution 2208 to approve the Utility Franchise Agreement with Portland 
General Electric 
 
Background:  The City has a non-exclusive electric franchise agreement with Portland General 
Electric (PGE) to provide electricity and electric services to North Plains. To quote the franchise 
agreement, it grants PGE the ability “to erect, construct, maintain, repair, update and operate an 
electric light and power system within the City of North Plains.” The agreement also sets the terms 
by which PGE can access the City’s right-of-way and sets the franchise fee.  
 
The most recent franchise agreement with PGE was renewed in 2012 for a period of 10 years, set to 
expire June 30, 2022. The City and PGE started negotiating new terms of a franchise agreement 
earlier this year to update and clean up old language, but midway through the process our principal 
City Attorney Spencer Parsons departed the Beery Elsner & Hammond law firm. 
 
To allow us more time to negotiate and finalize the franchise agreement, city staff, the city attorney, 
and PGE agreed to extend the most recent operating franchise until December 31, 2022. The Council 
adopted an emergency ordinance on September 6, 2022, that executed the extension. 
 
In the meantime, the City’s team met with PGE a few more times to clean up a few minor final items 
that did not materially change the franchise agreement currently in force. This agreement would be 
in effect for a period of 20 years, set to expire in 2042, unless cancelled by either party. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2208. 
 
Goal Association:  No goal association. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  No change to the current franchise fee. 
 
Recommendation:   Adopt Resolution 2208 to approve the Utility Franchise Agreement with 
Portland General Electric 
 

Page 13 of 47



    

 

 
 

Sample Motion: I move to adopt Resolution 2208 to approve the Utility Franchise Agreement 
with Portland General Electric 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 2208 
   DRAFT Franchise Agreement Renewal with PGE 

Page 14 of 47



 
Resolution No. 2208 
PGE Franchise Agreement 
Adopted December 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2208 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AUTHORIZING A 
20-YEAR, NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC 

COMPANY FOR PROVISION OF ELECTRICITY AND ELECTRIC SERVICES  
 
WHEREAS, Portland General Electric Company (“PGE”) has been providing electricity 
and electric services within the City of North Plains (“City”); and 
 
WHEREAS, PGE is duly authorized by the Oregon Public Utility Commission 
(“OPUC”) to supply electricity and electric services within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has the authority to regulate the use of the Public ROW (as 
defined in the franchise agreement) within the City and to receive compensation for 
the use of the Public ROW; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and PGE both desire PGE to continue to be able to provide 
electrical service within the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City Council authorizes a non-exclusive, 20-year franchise to 
Portland General Electric Company, marked Exhibit A and attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein.  
 

Section 2. This Resolution is and shall be effective from and after its 
enactment by the City Council. 

 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
________________________________________ 
Teri Lenahan, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________  
Lori Lesmeister, City Recorder 

Page 15 of 47



1 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

This Franchise Agreement (“Franchise”) grants Portland General Electric Company 

(“Grantee”) a non- exclusive franchise for twenty years to erect, construct, maintain, 

repair, update and operate an electric light and power system within the City of 

North Plains, Oregon (“City”), sets forth the terms and conditions of the franchise and 

provides an effective date. 

WHEREAS, Grantee has been providing electricity and electric services within 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, Grantee is duly authorized by the Oregon Public Utility 

Commission (“OPUC”) to supply electricity and electric services within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to regulate the use of the Public ROW (as 

defined below) within the City and to receive compensation for the use of the Public 

ROW; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with that authority, the City has enacted Chapter 50 of 

the North Plains Municipal Code (“NPMC”). 

WHEREAS, the City and Grantee both desire Grantee to continue to be able to 

provide electrical service within the City and to establish the terms by which Grantee 

shall use and occupy the Public ROW. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. NATURE AND TERM OF FRANCHISE. 

(A) The City hereby grants to Grantee and its successors and assigns, subject to

the terms and conditions in this Franchise, a nonexclusive franchise to erect,

construct, repair, maintain, upgrade and operate an  electric system within

the City as it now exists or may be extended in the future, including related

Grantee Facilities (as defined below). This Franchise includes the privilege

to, consistent with all applicable federal, state and local laws and

regulations, install, repair, maintain, upgrade and operate Grantee Facilities

upon, over, along, and across the surface of and the space above and below

the streets, alleys, roads, highways, sidewalks, bridges, C i t y  p a r k

p r o p e r t y  and other public ways (collectively, “Public ROW”), as well

as public utility easements on third party property on which a preliminary

subdivision plat has been approved by the City, and which will be managed

Resolution No. 2208
Exhibit A

Page 16 of 47



2  

by the City thereafter (“PUEs”), for the provision of public utility services 

within the City. Nothing in this Franchise limits the City from granting 

others the right to carry on activities similar to, or different from, the ones 

described in this Franchise.  

(B) All Grantee Facilities in possession of Grantee currently or during the Term 

(as defined in Section 2(A)) that are located within the Public ROW are 

covered by this Franchise and are deemed lawfully placed in their current 

locations. The City may require relocation of Grantee Facilities as  further 

specified in Section 8. 

SECTION 2. TERM AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

(A) Effective Date.   The effective date of this Franchise shall be thirty 

(30) days after it has been signed by Grantee and the City Council passes an 

ordinance adopting this Franchise. 

(B) Duration of Franchise. The term of this Franchise, and all rights and 

obligations pertaining thereto, shall be ten (10) years from the effective date 

of the Franchise (“Term”) unless renegotiated or terminated as provided  

herein.  The Term shall automatically extend for two (2) five (5) year 

periods, unless either party provides at least 180 days prior written notice to 

the other party that it does not desire to extend the Term.  If such notice is 

provided by either party, the Term shall expire at the end of the then current 

Term. 

(C) Charter and General Ordinances to Apply. To the extent authorized by 

law, this Franchise is subject to the Charter of the City of North Plains and 

general ordinance provisions passed pursuant thereto, including the 

applicable provisions of NPMC Chapter 50 and 155, and in particular 

NPMC Section 155.627(6) which requires all utility facilities, including 

electric power facilities, be placed underground, except for surface-mounted 

transformers (but for which the City retains approval authority over the location of 

all surface-mounted transformers), surface-mounted connection boxes and meter 

cabinets, temporary utility service facilities during construction, high capacity 

electric and communication feeder lines, and utility transmission lines operating at 

50,000 volts or more. Nothing in this Franchise shall be deemed to waive the 

Page 17 of 47



3  

requirements of the various codes and ordinances of the City regarding 

permits, fees to be paid that are generally applicable to other similar 

businesses operating within the City, or the manner of construction. 

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS. 

(A) Captions. Throughout this Franchise, captions to sections are intended 

solely to facilitate reading and to reference the provisions of this Franchise. 

The captions shall not affect the meaning and interpretation of this 

Franchise. 

(B) Definitions. For purposes of this Franchise, the following terms, phrases, 

and their derivations shall have the meanings given below unless the context 

indicates otherwise. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in 

the present tense include the future tense, words in the  plural number 

include the singular number, and words in the singular number include the 

plural number. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely 

directory. 

(1) "City" means the City of North Plains, Oregon, a municipal 

corporation, and all of the territory within its corporate boundaries, as 

such may change from time to time. 

(2) “City Council” means the Council of the City. 

(3) “City Engineer” means the City Engineer of the City. 

(4) “City Manager” means the City Manager of the City. 

(5) “City Recorder” means the Recorder of the City. 

(6) “Director of Finance” means the Director of Finance of the City. 

(7) "Franchise" means this Franchise Agreement as fully executed by the 

City and Grantee. 

(8) “Grantee” means Portland General Electric Company, an Oregon 

corporation. 

(9) "Grantee Facility" means any tangible component of Grantee’s 

Electric System, including but not limited to any poles, guy wires, 

anchors, wire, fixtures, equipment, conduit, circuits, vaults, switch 

Page 18 of 47



4  

cabinets, transformers, secondary junction cabinets, antennas, 

communication equipment and other property necessary or 

convenient to supply electric light and power by  Grantee within the 

City. “Grantee Facility” includes “Equipment” as defined by NPMC 

Section 50.21 

(10) "Grantee’s Electric System" means all real property and Grantee 

Facilities used by Grantee in the provision of its services that are 

approved and regulated by the Oregon Public Utilities Commission, 

that are located inside the boundaries of the City and includes all 

Grantee’s “Equipment” as defined by NPMC Section 50.21. 

(11) “Gross Revenues" means any and all revenues derived by Grantee 

within the City from Grantee’s Electric System, and includes, but is 

not limited to, the sale of and use of electricity and electric 

services, and the use, rental, or lease of Grantee Facilities, after 

adjustment for the net write-off of uncollectible accounts. Gross 

Revenues do not include proceeds from the sale of bonds, mortgages 

or other evidence of indebtedness, securities or stocks, or sales at 

wholesale by one public utility to another of electrical energy when 

the utility purchasing such electrical energy is not the ultimate 

consumer. Gross Revenues also do not include revenue from joint 

pole use. For purposes of this Franchise, revenue from joint pole use 

includes any revenue collected by Grantee from other franchisees, 

permittees, or licensees of the City for the right to attach wires, cable 

or other facilities or equipment to Grantee’s poles or place them in 

Grantee’s conduits. 

(12) “NESC” means the National Electrical Safety Code. 

(13) “NEC” means the National Electrical Code. 

(14) “OPUC” means the Oregon Public Utility Commission. 

(15) “Term” shall have the meaning described in Section 2. 

(16) "Person" means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, 

association, corporation, cooperative, People’s Utility District, or 

other form of organization authorized to do business in the State of 

Page 19 of 47



5  

Oregon, and includes any natural person. 

(17) “Public ROW” shall have the meaning described in Section 1 (A) 

and includes all “Rights-of-Way” as defined by NPMC Section 

50.21. 

(18) "PUE” shall have the meaning described in Section 1 (A). 

(19) "Year," "annual," or "annually" means the period consisting of   a full 

calendar year, beginning January 1, and ending December 31,  unless 

otherwise provided in this Franchise. 

SECTION 4. CONSTRUCTION. 

(A) Construction. Subject to the NESC, Grantee’s Electric System shall be 

constructed and maintained in such manner as not to interfere with 

sewers, water pipes, or any other property of the City, or with any other 

pipes, wires, conduits, communications equipment or other facilities that 

may have been  laid in the Public ROW by or under the City’s authority. 

Grantee and the City shall work together during any design process 

affecting the Public ROW to establish suitable locations for Grantee’s 

Facilities. Assuming there is sufficient space in the Public ROW, all poles 

shall be placed between the sidewalk and the edge of the Public ROW 

unless another location is approved by the City Engineer. If there is not 

sufficient space  in the Public ROW, the City agrees to use commercially 

reasonable efforts to provide or obtain a suitable alternative location, , 

which includes a minimum or maximum square footage set by Grantee 

and the required easements from private property owners to accommodate 

Grantee’s Facilities in order to maintain sufficient service. The alternative 

location may include a private easement that is required by the City’s 

approval of a third party land use application. Unless the City otherwise 

expressly agrees in writing, the City shall bear no costs or expenses in 

securing any such alternative locations for Grantee. Except as otherwise 

agreed to by parties, Grantee may complete work in the Public ROW 

between the hours of 8:00am-5:00pm Monday through Friday.   

(B) Annexation. Subsequent to the effective date of this Franchise, upon any 

annexation to the City of any area in which Grantee retains Grantee 

Page 20 of 47



6  

Facilities in the Public ROW of such annexation, Grantee shall submit to 

the City a statement describing all Grantee Facilities involved, whether 

authorized by a franchise agreement or upon any other form of prior right, 

together with a map, as described in  Section 5, specifying the location of all 

such Grantee Facilities. Such Grantee Facilities shall immediately be 

subject to the terms of this Franchise. 

(C) Emergency Repairs. In the event emergency repairs to Grantee Facilities 

are necessary, Grantee shall as soon as reasonably possible notify the City 

of the need for such repairs. Grantee may immediately initiate such 

emergency repairs and apply for appropriate permits the next  business day 

or as soon as reasonably possible following discovery of the  emergency. 

(D) Reasonable Care. All work completed by Grantee within the Public ROW 

shall be conducted with reasonable care and with the goal of minimizing the 

risk to those using the Public ROW and to minimize the risk of damage to 

public and third-party property. All work shall be performed in accordance 

with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the 

NESC. Any work completed by Grantee   within the Public ROW may be 

inspected by the City to determine whether it has been placed in its 

approved location according to Grantee’s  permit issued by the City. If 

emergency work has been completed by Grantee in the Public ROW and the 

City determines such work was not completed in a City approved location, 

the City shall notify Grantee and provide Grantee with sixty (60) days after 

the emergency has passed to reperform the work in a City approved 

location, subject to the NESC. 

SECTION 5. SUPPLYING MAPS.  

(A) Grantee shall maintain maps and data pertaining to the location of Grantee 

Facilities on file at its corporate offices or at an office in Oregon. Upon 

request of the City and without charge, Grantee shall furnish current maps to 

the City by electronic data in read-only format showing the general location 

of Grantee Facilities, excluding Grantee proprietary information.   Unless 

required by law, the City will not sell or provide Grantee prepared maps or 

data to third parties without written permission from Grantee. Upon request 

Page 21 of 47



7  

of Grantee, the City will make available to Grantee any existing and relevant 

City prepared maps or data in the City’s possession at no charge to Grantee. 

SECTION 6. EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION AFTER EXCAVATION. 

(A)   Excavation. Subject to Sections 4 and 7, and after obtaining any permits 

required by the City, Grantee may make all necessary excavations within the 

Public ROW for the purpose of installing, repairing, upgrading or 

maintaining Grantee Facilities, except that in the case of an emergency, no 

permit shall be required prior to excavation. Notwithstanding any terms or 

conditions stated in a permit granted by the City, the terms of this Franchise 

shall control. All excavations made by Grantee in the Public ROW shall be 

properly safeguarded for the prevention of accidents. All of Grantee’s work 

under this Section 6 shall be completed in compliance with all applicable 

rules, regulations and ordinances of the City. Should a customer of Grantee 

be  required, pursuant to Grantee’s tariff on file with the OPUC, to make 

excavations that are located in the Public ROW, the City agrees that Grantee 

shall not be responsible or liable  for any failure by such customer to comply 

with any applicable rules, regulations, ordinances of the City and/or with 

City standards.  

(B)  Restoration after Excavation. Except as otherwise provided for in this 

Section, Grantee shall restore the surface of the Public ROW disturbed by 

any excavation by Grantee to at least the same condition that it was in prior 

to excavation. If Grantee excavates the surface of the Public ROW, Grantee 

shall be responsible for restoration of the Public ROW and the area affected 

by the excavation. If Grantee fails to restore the Public ROW  to at least the 

same condition that it was in prior to the excavation, the City shall give 

Grantee written notice and provide Grantee a reasonable period of time, not 

to exceed thirty (30) days, to restore the Public ROW. If the work of 

Grantee creates a public safety hazard as determined by the City Engineer, 

Grantee may be required to repair or restore the Public ROW within twenty-

four (24) hours notice from the City, or such time as agreed between the 

City Engineer and Grantee, taking into consideration weather and other 

relevant factors. Should Grantee fail to make such repairs or restorations 

Page 22 of 47



8  

within the  aforementioned time frames, the City may, after providing notice 

to Grantee and a reasonable opportunity to cure, refill or repave any opening 

made by Grantee in the Public ROW and the expense thereof shall be paid 

by Grantee. The City reserves the right, after providing notice to Grantee, to 

remove or repair any work completed by Grantee which, in the 

determination of the City Engineer is inadequate, using a qualified 

contractor in accordance with applicable state and federal safety laws and 

regulations. The cost thereof, including the cost of inspection and 

supervision, shall be paid by Grantee. In the event that Grantee’s work is 

coordinated with other construction work in the Public ROW, the City 

Engineer may excuse Grantee from restoring the surface of the  Public 

ROW; provided that as part of the coordinated work, the Public ROW is 

restored  to good order and condition. 

SECTION 7.  VEGETATION MANAGEMENT. The City agrees not to limit Grantee 

or its contractor from pruning and/or removing all trees and vegetation which present the 

risk of growing-in, overhanging, or falling-into Grantee’s overhead electrical system, 

whether such trees or vegetation originate within or outside the Public ROW, to prevent 

the branches or limbs or other part of such trees or vegetation from interfering with 

Grantee Facilities. Such pruning and removal shall comply with the American National 

Standard for Tree Care Operation (ANSI A300) and be conducted under the direction of 

an arborist certified with the International Society of Arboriculture. A growth inhibitor 

treatment may be used within the Public ROW for trees and vegetation species that are 

fast-growing and problematic. Nothing contained in this Section shall prevent Grantee, 

when necessary and with the approval of the owners of the property on which they may 

be located, from cutting down and removing any trees which overhang or pose a risk of 

falling-in or overstriking the Grantee’s overhead electrical system, regardless of whether 

the vegetation is located within the Public ROW.  Grantee’s vegetation management 

practices shall comply with all vegetation management requirements established by the 

OPUC. 

SECTION 8. RELOCATION. 

(A) Permanent Relocation Required   by City – This subsection covers 

relocation of overhead Grantee Facilities that will remain overhead, and 

Page 23 of 47



9  

underground Grantee Facilities that will remain underground. The City shall 

have the right to require Grantee to change the location of Grantee’s Electric 

System when necessary or convenient in the interest of the public as 

determined by the City and, unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the 

expenses thereof shall be paid by Grantee. The City shall provide Grantee a 

reasonable amount of time, based on Grantee’s reasonable determination, to 

adequately design such relocation.  The City agrees to provide a suitable 

location in the Public ROW for Grantee Facilities that includes a minimum 

or maximum square footage set by Grantee. If sufficient space is not 

available in the Public ROW for Grantee Facilities, the City agrees to obtain 

sufficient easements from private property owners to accommodate Grantee 

Facilities in order to maintain service and permit upgrades of Grantee 

Facilities. Unless the City otherwise expressly agrees in writing, the City 

shall bear no costs or expenses in securing any such easements.   Should 

Grantee fail to remove or relocate any such Grantee Facilities within ninety 

(90) days after the date established by the City, which, except in the  event of 

public emergency, shall not occur sooner than ninety (90) days after the City 

provides written notice to remove/relocate to Grantee or such longer time in 

the event the design of such relocation will take longer to complete based on 

Grantee’s reasonable determination, the City may cause or effect such 

removal or relocation, performed by a qualified contractor in accordance 

with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations, including the 

NESC and the expense thereof shall be paid by Grantee. 

(B) Notice. The City will endeavor to provide as much notice prior to requiring 

Grantee to relocate Grantee Facilities as possible. The notice shall specify the 

date by which the existing Grantee Facilities must be removed or relocated. 

Nothing in this provision shall prevent the City and  Grantee from agreeing, 

either before or after notice is provided, to a schedule for relocation. 

(C) Permanent Relocation - Undergrounding. As permitted by, and in 

accordance with City ordinance and any applicable law, administrative rule, 

or regulation, as discussed above, the City may require Grantee to convert any 

overhead  

Page 24 of 47



10  

Grantee Facilities to underground Grantee Facilities at the same or different 

locations, subject to Grantee’s engineering and safety standards. This 

section shall not apply to Grantee Facilities used for or in connection with 

the transmission of electric energy at nominal voltages in excess of 35,000 

volts or to pedestals, cabinets or other above ground equipment. Any such 

relocation shall be consistent with applicable long- term development plans 

or projects of the City, or as approved by the City.   The expense of such a 

conversion shall be paid by Grantee; provided, however, City shall remain 

responsible for certain ancillary costs as set forth in Grantee’s tariff 

approved by the OPUC (e.g., expenses associated with the pathway, conduit, 

vaults, etc.).  Additionally, nothing in this section limits Grantee’s ability to 

recover its costs from its customers in accordance with its tariff approved by 

the OPUC, state law, administrative rule, or regulation. The City agrees to 

provide a suitable location in the Public ROW that includes a minimum or 

maximum square footage set by Grantee and if sufficient space is not 

available in the Public ROW, then the City will obtain sufficient easements 

from private property owners to accommodate Grantee Facilities in order to 

maintain service and   permit upgrades of Grantee Facilities.   Unless the City 

otherwise expressly agrees in writing, the City shall bear no costs or 

expenses in securing any such easements.   Nothing in this subsection 

prevents the City and Grantee from separately agreeing to a different form 

of cost recovery consistent with applicable statutes, administrative rules, or 

regulations on a case-by-case basis, however any such separate agreement 

must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

(D) Temporary Relocation at Request of Third Parties. Whenever it 

is necessary to temporarily relocate or rearrange any Grantee Facility in 

order to permit the passage of any building, machinery or other object, 

Grantee shall perform the work after receiving sixty (60) business days 

written notice from the persons desiring to move the building, machinery or 

other object. The notice shall: (1) demonstrate that the third party has 

acquired at its expense all necessary permits; (2) detail the route of 

movement of the building, machinery, or other object; (3) provide that the 

Page 25 of 47



11  

person requesting the temporary relocation shall be responsible for Grantee’s 

costs; (4) provide that the requestor shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

City and Grantee from any and all damages or claims resulting either from 

the moving of the building, machinery or other object or from the temporary 

relocation of Grantee Facilities; and (5) be accompanied by a cash deposit or 

other security acceptable to Grantee for the costs of relocation. Grantee in its 

sole discretion may waive the security obligation. The cash deposit or other 

security shall be in an amount reasonably calculated by Grantee to cover 

Grantee’s costs of temporary relocation and restoration.    

All temporary relocations under this subsection shall comply with ORS 

757.805. 

(E) Temporary Relocation at Request of City. The City may require Grantee to 

temporarily remove and relocate Grantee Facilities by giving sixty (60) days’ 

notice to Grantee. Prior to such relocation, the City agrees to provide a suitable 

location that includes a minimum or maximum square footage set by Grantee in 

the Public ROW for such relocated Grantee Facilities sufficient to maintain 

service and permit upgrades to such Grantee Facilities. The City will obtain 

easements from private property owners if sufficient square footage is not 

available in the Public ROW. The cost of removal or relocation of Grantee 

Facilities that is necessary or convenient for public projects shall be paid by 

Grantee; however, when relocation is to be temporary and both the initial and 

the subsequent relocation are necessary or convenient for public projects and not 

at the request of or to accommodate a third party, the initial relocation shall be 

at the expense of Grantee and subsequent relocations occurring  less than two (2) 

years after the initial relocation shall be at the expense of the                 City. 

(F) Permanent Relocation at Request of Third Party. In the event that 

any relocation is requested by or is to accommodate a third party, Grantee 

shall seek reimbursement from the third party and not from the City. Such 

relocation shall be consistent with an applicable long-term development plan 

or projection of the City or approved by the City. The City and Grantee 

agree to cooperate to minimize the economic impact of such relocation on 

each party. The City shall not take a legal position that prevents or frustrates 

Page 26 of 47



12  

Grantee in seeking reimbursement from the third party. 

SECTION 9. PUBLIC ROW VACATION. If all or a portion of the Public ROW 

used by Grantee is vacated by the City during the Term, and if reasonably possible, the 

City shall either condition the approval of the vacation on the reservation of an easement 

for Grantee Facilities in their then-current location that prohibits any use of the vacated 

property that interferes with Grantee’s full enjoyment and use of its easement, or permit 

Grantee Facilities to remain in a PUE. If neither of these options is reasonably possible, 

Grantee shall, after notice from the City and without expense to the City, remove Grantee 

Facilities from such vacated Public ROW, restore, repair or reconstruct the Public ROW 

where such removal has occurred, and place the Public ROW in good order and 

condition as may be required by the City. In the event of failure, neglect or refusal of 

Grantee, after providing Grantee with ninety (90) days prior written notice, to repair, 

restore, or reconstruct such Public ROW, the City may complete such work or cause it to 

be  completed by a qualified contractor in accordance with applicable state and federal 

safety  laws and regulations, and the cost thereof shall be borne by the Grantee. Upon 

request, the  City will cooperate with Grantee to identify alternative locations within the 

Public ROW for Grantee Facilities if they are not permitted to remain in the vacated 

area or provide reasonable assistance to Grantee in obtaining easements to maintain 

Grantee Facilities in the same location.  

SECTION 10. CITY PUBLIC WORKS AND IMPROVEMENTS. Nothing in 

this Franchise shall be construed in any way to prevent the City from excavating, 

grading, paving, planking, repairing, widening, altering, or completing any work that 

may be needed or convenient in the Public ROW that is consistent with the NESC. The 

City shall coordinate any such work with Grantee to avoid, to the extent reasonably 

foreseeable, any obstruction, injury or restrictions on the use by Grantee of any 

Grantee Facilities, and the City shall be responsible for the costs to repair any damage to 

Grantee Facilities arising out of such work. Nothing in this Section relieves Grantee from 

its obligations stated in Section 8. 

SECTION 11. USE OF GRANTEE FACILITIES. City shall maintain attachment 

agreements and permits to string wires on Grantee’s poles or run wires in Grantee’s 

trenches and/or conduit for municipal purposes and to attach fire and police alarm and 

communication equipment to Grantee’s poles; provided that such wires and equipment: 

Page 27 of 47



13  

a) do not unreasonably interfere with Grantee operations; b) conform to the NESC; and c) 

the City’s excess capacity on such wires and equipment is not leased to, sold to or 

otherwise used by non-governmental third parties. Grantee shall not charge the City for 

such attachments to its poles or in its conduits; however, the City shall be responsible for 

paying for any make-ready and inspections Grantee must perform in order to provide 

access to Grantee Facilities for City wires and equipment in accordance with the NESC. 

Should any of the City’s attachments to Grantee Facilities violate the NESC, the City 

shall work with Grantee to address and correct such violations in an agreed-upon 

period of time. The City shall indemnify and hold Grantee harmless from loss or damage 

resulting from the presence of City’s wires and equipment on or in Grantee Facilities. 

For purposes of this Franchise, “make-ready” shall mean engineering or construction 

activities necessary to make a pole, conduit, or other support equipment available for a 

new attachment, attachment modifications, or additional facilities. 

SECTION 12. PAYMENT FOR USE OF PUBLIC ROW. 

(A) Use of Public ROW. In consideration for its use of the Public ROW in 

accordance with the terms of this Franchise, Grantee agrees to pay the City 

an amount equal to 3 1/2 percent (3.5%) of the Gross Revenue received by 

Grantee from its customers within the City (“Franchise Fee”). The payment 

for each year shall be based on the Gross Revenue collected by Grantee 

during the previous calendar year, and shall be paid on an annual basis. To 

the extent permissible under state law and regulation, the payment imposed 

by this subsection shall be considered an operating  expense of Grantee and 

shall not be itemized or billed separately to consumers within the City. 

(B) Property Tax Limitations Do Not Apply. The payment described in this 

Section 12 is not subject to the property tax limitations of Article XI, 

Sections 11(b) and 11(19) of the Oregon Constitution and is not a fee 

imposed on property or property owners by fact of ownership. 

(C) Privilege Tax. The City has imposed, as permitted by Oregon  law, a one 

and one half  percent (1.5%) privilege tax based on  the Gross Revenue 

earned from Grantee’s customers within the City in addition to the payment 

amounts set forth in subsection (A). To the extent any change to applicable 

laws and regulations authorize the City to charge more than the amount 

Page 28 of 47



14  

currently imposed by NPMC Section 50.22, the City reserves the right to 

increase that amount accordingly. The City shall provide Grantee at least 

ninety (90) days notice prior to such change to the privilege tax imposed by 

NPMC Section 50.22 becoming effective. Grantee shall follow state 

regulations regarding the inclusion of such privilege tax as an itemized 

charge on the electricity bills of its customers within the City. 

(D) Remittance of Annual Payment. Grantee shall remit to the Director  of 

Finance all payments in accordance with NPMC Section 50.22. Payment 

must be made in immediately available federal funds. With its annual 

payment, Grantee shall provide the City a statement showing the Gross 

Revenue for the preceding year. 

(E) Late Payments. Interest on late payments shall accrue from the due  date on 

all outstanding amounts owed, regardless of whether construed as a privilege 

tax  or a franchise fee, or any combination thereof, as provided in NPMC 

Section 50.23. Interest shall accrue without regard to whether the City has 

provided notice of delinquency. 

(F) No Exemption From Other Fees or Taxes. Payment of the amounts 

described in this Section 12 shall not exempt Grantee from the payment of 

any other license fee, tax or charge on the business, occupation, property or 

income of Grantee that may be lawfully imposed by the City or any other 

taxing authority, except as may otherwise be provided in the ordinance or 

laws imposing such other license fee, tax or charge. 

(G) Payment Obligation Survives Franchise. If prior to the expiration of this 

Franchise the parties do not finish negotiation of a new franchise agreement, 

the obligation to make the payments imposed by this Section 12 shall 

survive expiration of this Franchise until a new franchise agreement 

becomes effective and supersedes this Franchise. In the event this Franchise 

is terminated before expiration, Grantee shall make the remaining payments 

owed, if any, within ninety (90) days of the termination date. 

SECTION 13. AUDIT. 

(A) Audit Notice and Record Access. The City may audit Grantee’s  calculation 

of Gross Revenues for the prior three (3) calendar years, alone or in 

Page 29 of 47



15  

conjunction and collaboration with other public bodies with which Grantee 

holds a franchise. Within ten (10) business days after receiving a written 

request from the City, or such other time frame as agreed by both parties, 

Grantee shall furnish the City and any auditor retained by the City 

information sufficient to demonstrate that Grantee is in compliance with this 

Franchise. Grantee shall provide access to such information to City within 

the City, or the Portland, Oregon metropolitan area, during regular Grantee 

business hours. 

(B) Audit Payment. If the City’s audit shows that the amounts due to the  City 

are higher than those based on the Grantee’s calculation of Gross Revenue, 

then Grantee shall make a payment for the difference within sixty (60) days 

after the delivery to Grantee of the audit results. In addition to paying any 

underpayment, Grantee shall pay interest on all outstanding amounts owed, 

regardless of whether construed as a privilege tax or a franchise fee, or any 

combination thereof, as provided in NPMC Section 50.23. In the event the 

City’s audit shows that Grantee’s calculation of Gross Revenue resulted in 

an overpayment to the City by five percent (5%) or more in any one year, 

the Grantee may deduct such overpayment from the next annual franchise 

fee payment. If the City’s audit shows that the amounts due to the City 

based on the Grantee’s calculation of Gross Revenue deviated by five 

percent (5%) or more in any one year from the City’s calculation during the 

audit, Grantee shall reimburse City for the City’s actual cost of the audit, not 

to exceed twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00). 

SECTION 14. TERMINATION AND REMEDIES. 

(A) By City if City Will Provide Service. The City may terminate this 

Franchise upon one year’s written notice to Grantee in the event that the 

City decides to engage in public ownership of the electric facilities located  

in the Public ROW and the public distribution of electric energy to 

customers throughout the City in accordance with ORS 758.470. 

(B) City Reserves Right to Terminate. In addition to any other rights   provided 

for in this Franchise, the City reserves the right, subject to subsections (D) 

and (E) of this Section 14, below, to terminate this Franchise in the event 

Page 30 of 47



16  

that: 

(1) The Grantee materially violates any material provision of this 

Franchise; 

(2) The Grantee is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to  have 

practiced any material fraud or deceit upon the City; 

(3) There is a final determination that Grantee has failed, refused, 

neglected or is otherwise unable to obtain or maintain Grantee’s 

service territory designation required by any federal or state regulatory 

body regarding Grantee's operation of Grantee’s Electric System; or 

(4) Grantee becomes unable or unwilling to pay its debts, or is 

adjudged bankrupt. 

(C) Notice and Opportunity to Cure. The City shall provide Grantee thirty 

(30) days prior written notice of its intent to exercise its right to terminate, 

stating the reasons for such action. If Grantee cures the basis for termination 

or if the Grantee initiates efforts satisfactory to the City to remedy the basis 

for termination and the efforts continue in good faith within the thirty (30) 

day notice period, the City shall not exercise its  termination right. If Grantee 

fails to cure the basis for termination or if the Grantee does not undertake 

and/or maintain efforts satisfactory to the City  to remedy the basis for 

termination within the thirty (30) day notice period, then the City Council 

may impose any or all of the remedies available under this Section 14. 

(D) Remedies. In determining which remedy or remedies are appropriate, the 

City shall consider the nature of the violation, the person or persons 

burdened by the violation, the nature of the remedy required in order to 

prevent further such violations, and any other matters the City deems 

appropriate. Financial penalties and termination of this Franchise, as 

provided in this Section 14, are not mutually exclusive and the City shall 

have the right to impose either or both remedies, in its sole discretion. 

(E) Financial Penalty. In addition to any rights set out elsewhere in this 

Franchise, as well as its rights under the City Code or other law, the City 

reserves the right at its sole option to impose a financial penalty of up to 

$500.00 per day for a violation of a material provision of this Franchise 

Page 31 of 47



17  

when the opportunity to cure has passed. Each day a violation exists shall be 

construed as a separate violation, subject to a separate penalty, and shall 

include all days during the notice period provided in Section 14 (C), above, 

that the violation is not cured.  

SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT OF FRANCHISE. Grantee shall not sell, assign, 

transfer, or convey this Franchise to a third party without the City Council giving its 

prior consent in a duly passed ordinance or resolution. No sale, assignment, transfer or 

conveyance prior to the City Council’s shall be valid until such consent is obtained. Any 

attempted sale, assignment, transfer or conveyance without City Council consent being 

granted is void. Upon obtaining such consent, this Franchise shall inure to and bind such 

third party. Grantee shall not sell or assign this Franchise to an entity that is not 

authorized by the OPUC to provide electric service to retail consumers in the City or is 

not otherwise authorized to provide electric service to retail consumers under Oregon 

law. Prior to seeking the consent of the City Council for any proposed transfer, Grantee 

shall be in full compliance with this Franchise and the proposed transferee shall agree in 

writing to be bound by this  Franchise. In the event Grantee is purchased by or merged 

into another entity and Grantee survives such purchase or merger as a public utility, 

Grantee shall provide notice  to the City of such purchase or merger, but shall have no 

obligation under this Franchise to obtain the consent of the City Council for such 

purchase or merger, to the extent the purchase or merger complies with all applicable 

federal and Oregon laws and regulations. 

 
SECTION 16. REMOVAL OF FACILITIES. If this Franchise is terminated or 

expires on its own terms and is not replaced by a new franchise agreement or similar 

authorization, the City may determine whether Grantee Facilities are to be removed from 

the Public ROW or remain in place, in its sole discretion. The City shall provide written 

notice of any requirement to remove some or all of the Grantee Facilities and shall 

provide Grantee thirty (30) days to comment on such requirement to move Grantee 

Facilities. Following consideration of any such comments, the City Manager may issue 

an order requiring removal of Grantee Facilities within six (6) months after such order is 

declared. 

 

Page 32 of 47



18  

SECTION 17. NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY.  

(A) Nondiscrimination of Customers. Grantee shall provide service its cost-

of-service electric light and power consumers in the City without undue 

discrimination or undue preference or disadvantage, in accordance with 

applicable Oregon and federal laws and regulations. 

(B) Equal Opportunity Employer.  Grantee is committed to a workplace free 

of discrimination based on race, color, religion, national origin, gender, age, 

military status, sexual orientation, marital status, or physical or mental 

disability or any other protected status in accordance with all federal, state 

or local laws.  Grantee shall not, solely because of race, color, religion, 

national origin, gender, age, military status, sexual orientation, marital 

status, or physical or mental disability, refuse to hire, discharge, promote, 

demote or discriminate in matters of compensation, against any person 

otherwise qualified. Grantee is committed to undertaking programs that 

identify, consider and develop persons of color, women and members of 

other under-represented groups for positions at any skill and management 

levels within Grantee’s organization. In order to enhance the diversity of the 

employees of Grantee, Grantee is committed to recruiting diverse employees 

by strategies such as collaborating with colleges, universities and technical 

schools with diverse student populations, utilizing diversity-specific media 

to advertise employment opportunities, internships, and engaging recruiting 

firms with diversity-specific expertise. Additionally, in order to enhance 

opportunities for advancement of persons of color, women and members of 

other under-represented groups, Grantee will offer training and development 

opportunities to its employees, including mentoring programs, trainings 

programs, classroom training and leadership programs. 

(C) Contracting and Economic Development.  Grantee is committed to make 

available to minority and women owned business enterprises and other 

small and/or disadvantaged business enterprises the maximum practical 

opportunity to compete with other service providers, contractors, vendors 

and suppliers in the marketplace.  Grantee is committed to increase the 

Page 33 of 47



19  

proportion of Grantee contracts awarded to minority and women owned 

business enterprises and other small and/or disadvantaged business 

enterprises for services, construction, equipment and supplies to the 

maximum extent consistent with the efficient and economic operation of 

Grantee.  

SECTION 18. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee 

shall indemnify and hold harmless the City against any and all claims, damages, costs 

and      expenses, including attorney’s fees and costs, to which the City may be subjected as 

a result of any negligent or willful misconduct of Grantee, or its affiliates, officers, 

employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors, arising out of the rights and privileges 

granted by this Franchise. The obligations imposed by this Section are intended to 

survive termination of this Franchise. 

SECTION 19. INSURANCE. Grantee shall maintain in full force and effect, for the 

entire Term, the following insurance covering risks associated with Grantee’s ownership 

and use of Grantee Facilities and the Public ROW: 

(A) Commercial General Liability insurance covering all operations by or on 

behalf of Grantee for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, including 

Completed Operations and Contractual Liability coverage, in an amount not 

less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence and in the 

aggregate. 

(B) Business Automobile Liability insurance to cover any vehicles used in 

connection with its activities under this Franchise, with a combined single 

limit not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by law and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).  

(D) With the exception of  Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 

coverage, Grantee shall include the City as an additional insured on all 

applicable policies.  Unless Grantee self-insures in accordance with Section 

19(E), Grantee agrees to provide City with thirty (30) days prior written 

notice if any of Grantee’s insurance policies under this Franchise will be 

canceled. Grantee  shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance 

evidencing such coverage as a condition of this Franchise and shall provide 

Page 34 of 47



20  

updated certificates upon request. 

(E) In Lieu of Insurance. In lieu of the insurance policies required by this 

Section 19, Grantee shall have the right to self- insure any and all of the 

coverage outlined hereunder. If Grantee elects to self-insure, it shall do so in 

an amount at least equal to the  coverage requirements of this Section 19 in 

a form acceptable to  the City. Grantee shall provide proof of self-insurance 

to the City before this Franchise takes effect and a n n u a l l y  thereafter. 

SECTION 20. DAMAGE TO FACILITIES. The City shall not be liable for  any 

consequential damages or losses resulting from any damage to or loss of any Grantee 

facility as a result of or in connection with any work by or for the City unless the damage 

or loss is the direct and proximate result of willful, intentionally tortious, negligent or 

malicious acts or omissions by the City, its employees, officers, contractors, agents or 

volunteers. In such case, the City shall indemnify and hold harmless Grantee against any 

and all claims, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees and costs, arising 

therefrom, subject to any applicable limitations in the Oregon Constitution and the  

Oregon Tort Claims Act. The obligations imposed by this Section are intended to survive 

termination of this Franchise. 

SECTION 21. FRANCHISE NOT EXCLUSIVE. This Franchise is not  exclusive and 

shall not be construed to limit the City from granting rights, privileges and authority to 

other persons similar to or different from those set  forth in this Franchise. 

SECTION 22. REMEDIES AND PENALTIES NOT EXCLUSIVE. All 

remedies and penalties under this Franchise, including termination, are cumulative and 

not exclusive, and the recovery or enforcement by one available remedy or imposition of 

a penalty is not a bar to recovery or enforcement by any other remedy or imposition of 

any other penalty. The City reserves the right to enforce the penal provisions of any City 

ordinance or resolution and to avail itself to any and all remedies available at law or in 

equity. Failure to enforce any term, condition or obligation of this Franchise shall not be 

construed as a waiver of a breach of any term, condition or obligation of this Franchise. 

A specific waiver of  a particular breach of any term, condition or obligation of this 

Franchise shall not be a waiver of any other, subsequent or future breach of the same or 

any other term, condition or obligation of this Franchise. 

 

Page 35 of 47



21  

SECTION 23. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or other portion of this Franchise is, for any reason, held  to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, all portions of this Franchise that 

are not held to be invalid or unconstitutional shall remain in effect until this Franchise is 

terminated or expired. After any declaration of invalidity or unconstitutionality of a 

portion of this Franchise, either party may demand that the other party meet to discuss 

amending the terms of this Franchise to conform to the original intent of the parties. If 

the parties are unable to agree on a revised franchise agreement within ninety (90) days 

after a portion of this Franchise is found to be invalid or unconstitutional, either party 

may terminate this Franchise by delivering one hundred and eighty (180) days’ notice to 

the other party. 

SECTION 24. NOTICE. Any notice provided for under this Franchise shall be 

sufficient if in writing and (1) delivered personally to the following addressee, (2) 

deposited in  the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt 

requested, or (3) sent by overnight or commercial air courier (such as Federal Express or 

UPS),  or to such other address as the receiving party hereafter shall specify in writing: 

 

If to the City:  

City Manager, City of North Plains 

31360 NW Commercial Street 

North Plains, Oregon 97133 

With a copy to:  

City Attorney Beery, Elsner & Hammond, LLP 

1804 NE 45th Avenue 

Portland, OR 97213 

 
If to the Grantee:  

Regional Manager Portland General Electric Company  

PGE – Beaverton Operations Center 
2213 SW 153rd Dr, 
Beaverton, OR 97006 

 

Page 36 of 47



22  

With a copy to:  

Portland General Electric Company Attn: 

General Counsel 

One World Trade Center, 17th Floor 

121 SW Salmon Street 

Portland, Oregon 97204 

 

Any such notice, communication or delivery shall be deemed effective and delivered 

upon the earliest to occur of actual delivery, three (3) business days after depositing in 

the United States mail or one (1) business day after shipment by commercial air courier. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized 

representatives, have executed this Franchise as of the dates indicated below. 

 

 

 

PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC 
COMPANY 

CITY 

By:    By:    
Name: Bradley Jenkins   Name:  Teri Lenahan  
Title:   Vice President, Utility Operations  Title:    Mayor of North Plains  
Date:      Date:      

 

Page 37 of 47



    

 

 
 

Date:  December 5, 2022 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Andy Varner 

Subject: Resolution 2209: Approve the American Rescue Plan Act Spending Framework 

Request:  Adopt Resolution 2209 to approve the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Spending 
Framework 

 
Background:  The City received approximately $490,000 in Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery 
(“SLFR”) Funds from the federal government from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. 
The funding arrived in two equal tranches: the first in summer 2021, and the second tranche this 
June. The Council held a work session in Fall 2021 to discuss the original ARPA program guidelines, 
and to give staff approval to pursue initial funding priorities last year. Those included funding for the 
library, remote work access, parks and recreation, and more. It’s worth noting that the City also 
received $1.8M in ARPA funding from the State Legislature for parks and trail funding. 
 
There is approximately $450,000 remaining in available SLFR funds. At a November 21 work session, 
City staff presented a set of draft recommendations for ARPA spending over the next 12-18 months. 
The recommendations were based on achieving Council goals, helping community organizations, 
improving safety, and pursuing some longer-term projects like a new city hall and downtown 
improvement.  
 
Resolution 2209 outlines those broad categories, ranging from Public Safety ($120,000 allocation) to 
the Library ($20,000).  There is also a reserved amount of unallocated Contingency for other 
projects, programs, or priorities. The amounts are spending guidelines for staff and for the Council. 
They can be subject to change if priorities shift. Staff will present a progress update for this spending 
framework at least 2-3 times per year. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2209. 
 
Goal Association:  This item relates to City services aligned with community growth, as we look to 
improve our organization and provide more services through this one-time funding. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Allocation plan is included in the resolution. 
 
Recommendation:   Adopt Resolution 2209 to approve the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
Spending Framework 

Page 38 of 47



    

 

 
 

Sample Motion: I move to adopt Resolution 2209 to approve the American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) Spending Framework 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 2209 
    

Page 39 of 47



 
Resolution No. 2209 
Approving Spending Plan for ARPA Funds 
Adopted December 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2209 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, APPROVING 
ALLOCATION OF THE CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY 

FUNDS AWARD OF THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021  
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Plains (“City”) received approximately $490,000 in 
Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery (“SLFR”) Funds from the federal government 
through the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City was also awarded $1.8M in legislative discretionary ARPA grant 
funds in 2021 for parks and trails projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has identified a number of goals and objectives, among them 
community engagement and development, intentional and managed growth, and city 
services aligned with community growth; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the November 21, 2022 City Council work session, City Staff 
presented its list of 2022-23 Spending Priorities, which incorporated community 
priorities and resident feedback and includes public safety initiatives, increasing 
access to services and reducing equity barriers, assisting those in need, providing 
seed money for new projects and programs, and addressing long-time priorities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to formally approve allocation of SLFR funds received 
through ARPA for specific programs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the following allocations of 
SLFR funds received through ARPA:  

 
• Public Safety $120,000 
• City Hall/Library Facilities $75,000 
• Council Goals $45,000 
• Education & Training $45,000 
• Downtown Improvement $35,000 
• Parks & Recreation $32,500 
• Community + Social Services $30,000 
• Economic Development $21,000 
• Library $20,000 
• Unallocated Contingency $27,171 

         Total $450,671 

Page 40 of 47



 
Resolution No. 2209 
Approving Spending Plan for ARPA Funds 
Adopted December 5, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Section 2. This Resolution is and shall be effective from and after its 

enactment by the City Council. 
 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December, 2022. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
________________________________________ 
Teri Lenahan, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________  
Lori Lesmeister, City Recorder 

Page 41 of 47



    

 

 
 

Date:  December 5, 2022 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  Andy Varner, City Manager 

Subject: City Manager Staff Report 

 
Each Friday I share a report of the week’s activity with the City Council. Here are the previous Friday reports: 
 
November 18 

• Some of the bigger news in town this week was the Far West Recycling neighborhood meeting on 
Wednesday night, held virtually. There were over 50 attendees and a lot of good questions, mainly 
from the Sunset Ridge neighborhood. We expect the land use application within the next 45 days, 
with a possible scheduled Planning Commission hearing in February. 

• Good news, we were awarded an ODOT grant of $250,000 this week for a Commercial Street 
sidewalk infill project. The scope calls for filling in much of the "missing" sidewalks on the south part 
of the road. We'll start the surveying of that within a couple months.  

• Bill and I had a meeting this week with the realtor of the red house, to discuss URA involvement. 
There is still some information to gather but we're pursuing a potential project. 

• With the election behind us, I started digging back into a local option levy for next May's ballot. We'll 
need to have a Council resolution adopted in late February for that time frame. I want to have a work 
session on this in December. 

• Staff and Corinne have been working on a community priorities and satisfaction survey. The draft is 
95% done, and I can share for Council feedback before the REAL holiday craziness sets in. 

• Staff will present information on the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) investment strategy at a work 
session this coming Monday. We're trying to align spending priorities with Council goals and 
community needs. 

• Chamber members will deliver and decorate a Giving Tree in the library vestibule on Monday! The 
library will collect needed items for the Senior Plaza residents. 

• The library will apply for a new Libraries Transforming Communities (LTC) Grant for Small and Rural 
Libraries focused on accessibility improvements such as an adaptive public computer station. 

• The library and city hall will be closed on Thursday and Friday next week in observance of the 
Thanksgiving holidays. 

• The library board is seeking to fill two inside-City limits vacancies. 
• The Budget Committee will be in search of one resident vacancy. Tell your friends about both! 
• The Sunset Ridge community is planning a 5K Turkey Trot on Thanksgiving Day. All in the community 

are welcome. (See flyer) 

Page 42 of 47



    

 

 
 

• With the EOA adoption on Monday's agenda, we are back on track to move forward with the UGB 
amendment process. We are planning the next Project Advisory Committee meeting for January 5. 

• Monday's Council agenda will include the second readings on the four previously-heard ordinances 
(marijuana regs, psilocybin regs, short term rental regs, and EOA), as well as a couple of consent 
agenda items: Portland State Univ IGA and the Recology Good Neighbor Agreement 

November 23 

• No report, short holiday week. 
 
************************************************** 

Economic Development Committee 
• December 7: SWOT and asset mapping discussion 

 
Parks & Recreation Board  

• December 12: Brynhill Phases 4 and 5 parks plan discussion 
 
Planning Commission 

• December 14: Updating 2023 Work Plan, examining zoning map 
 

Three Meeting Outlook for City Council  
• Refer to the Business Meeting calendar that follows this memo for upcoming agenda items. 

 
****************************************** 
Council Work Sessions 
The Council agreed to convene for City Council meeting work sessions on the first meeting of each month 
(and sometimes the second). I would welcome Council feedback, but future work session dates and potential 
topics I foresee include: 
 
December: Local Option Levy Update/Discussion? 

Page 43 of 47



December 2022
MEETING PRIMARY ALTERNATE NOTE DATE

City Council
1st Monday at 7:00 pm             

No work session   12/5

Economic Development Committee Lenahan 1st Wednesday at 6:00 pm    12/7
Washington County Office of 
Community Development Policy Lenahan Kindel 2nd Thursday   7:00pm 12/8

Parks & Rec Board Kindel 2nd Monday at 6:00 pm 12/12
Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Lenahan Papen 2nd Monday at 12:00 noon 12/12

Planning Commission Fage 2nd Wednesday at 7:00 pm 12/14

City Council 3rd Monday at 7:00pm 12/19

Library Board                               3rd Wednesday at 7:00pm     
Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Reid 4th Wednesday at 5:00pm 12/28

Col-Pac EDD
Metropolitan Area Communcations 
Commission (MACC) Sheldon Smith

Page 44 of 47



January 2023
MEETING PRIMARY ALTERNATE NOTE DATE

City Council
1st Wednesday at 7:00 pm 
with 6:00 pm work session   1/3

Economic Development Committee Lenahan
3rd Wednesday at 6:00 pm    

VIA ZOOM 1/5

Parks & Rec Board Smith 2nd Wednesday at 6:00 pm 1/10
Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Lenahan Papen 2nd Monday at 12:00 noon 1/10

Planning Commission Fage 2nd Wednesday at 7:00 pm 1/12
Washington County Office of 
Community Development Policy Lenahan Kindel 2nd Thursday   7:00pm 1/13

City Council
TUESDAY at 7:00pm due to 

1/17 MLK Holiday 1/18

Library Board                               Martinez
3rd Wednesday at 7:00pm     

VIA ZOOM 1/19
Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Reid 4th Wednesday at 5:00pm 1/26

Col-Pac EDD
Metropolitan Area Communcations 
Commission (MACC) Sheldon Smith

Page 45 of 47



1/3  ** 4/4  ** 7/5 ** 10/3  **
1/18 4/18 7/18 10/17
2/7  ** 5/2  ** 8/1  ** 11/7  **
2/22 5/16 8/15 11/21
3/7  ** 6/6  ** 9/6  ** 12/5 **
3/21 6/21 9/19 12/19

1st Wednesday      
6:00 pm

Economic 
Development

2nd Monday          
6:00 pm

Parks & Recreation 
Board

2nd 
Wednesday 

7:00 pm
Planning 

Commission
3rd Wednesday       

7:00 pm         Library Board

1/5 Martinez 1/10 Smith 1/12 Fage 1/19 Lenahan
2/2 Papen 2/14 Lenahan 2/9 Sheldon 2/16 Martinez
3/2 Sheldon 3/14 Sheldon 3/9 Kindel 3/16 Sheldon
4/6 Fage 4/11 Smith 4/13 Sheldon 4/20 Martinez
5/4 Kindel 5/9 Papen 5/11 Kindel 5/18 Lenahan
6/1 Martinez 6/13 Lenahan 6/8 Smith 6/15 Fage
7/6 Lenahan 7/11 Kindel 7/13 Fage 7/20 Papen
8/3 Martinez 8/8 Papen 8/10 Lenahan 8/17 Kindel
9/7 Papen 9/12 Smith 9/14 Sheldon 9/21 Fage

10/5 Smith 10/10 Fage 10/12 Papen 10/19 Martinez
11/2 Sheldon 11/14 Papen 11/9 Kindel 11/16 Smith
12/7 Lenahan 12/12 Martinez 12/14 Fage

2022 City Council Meeting Dates-7:00 p.m.

2022 City Council Meeting Calendar Schedule

Meetings in yellow are Tuesday meetings due 
to Monday holidays

2022 Schedule for Board and Commission Meetings

Meetings with ** behind them have a 6:00 pm 
Work Session 

Page 46 of 47



  

 

2022 Council Committee Appointments 
 

 
Meeting 

 
Primary 

 
Alternate 

 
 
Metropolitan Area Communications Commission 
(MACC)  
Tual Valley Comm Access TV  (TVCTV) 
Meets 1:30-4:00pm in Beaverton.   
Dates set approx. 3 weeks in advance 
 

                                      
Sheldon 

                 
Smith 

 
Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) 
Meet 2nd & 4th Wednesday of each month 5:00-7:00pm at 
Metro Council Chambers in Portland 
 

                     
Reid 

 
Open 

 
Washington County Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 
Meet 2nd Monday of each month in Beaverton 12:00-1:30pm 
 

                 
Lenahan 

                
Papen 

 
Washington County Office of Community Development: 
Policy Advisory Board 
Meet 2nd Thurs of each month 7:00-9:00pm 
Various locations throughout Washington County 
 

 
Papen 

 

                   
Kindel 

  
 

 
 

 

Page 47 of 47


	Agenda
	5. A. Res. No. 2207 - Adding Doughty and Reid and removing Boyles, Worthy and Baker from the Heritage Bank signer list
	5. B. Res. No. 2210 - Reappointing Heather LaBonte to the Planning Commission for a term thru December 31 2026
	Heather Labonte Planning Commission Application for Reappointment

	5. D. City Council - Regular Session - 21 Nov 2022 - Minutes
	8. A. Res 2208 PGE Franchise Agreement Staff Report 12.5.22
	8. A. Res. No. 2208 - PGE Franchise Agreement with Exhibit A
	Res. 2208 Exhibit A - North Plains 2022-PGE Franchise-final for signatures 11-30-22

	8. B. Res 2209 ARPA Spending Framework Staff Report 12.5.22
	8. B. Res. No. 2209 - ARPA Spending Plan
	9. A. City Manager Staff Report 12.05.2022
	9. C. 2022 December Calendar All Meetings
	9. C. 2023 January Calendar All Meetings
	9. C. 2022 Calendar of all NP City Meetings & Ex Officio duties
	9. C. 2022 Council Committee Appointments

	Resident Property owner: On
	Business Owner within City: Off
	Representative of Property within City: Off
	Explain: 
	Name: Heather LaBonte
	Date: 12/01/22
	Mailing Address: 
	Street Address if different: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip: 
	Work Phone: 
	Cell Phone: 
	Email Address: 
	Occupation: 
	Text1: I enjoy being a planning commission. I've 
	Text2: learned a lot in the years I've served and think that benefits the commission.
	Text3: Expanding the UGB, balanced
	Text4: housing types and economic growth.
	Text5: 
	Text6: Working
	Text7: with maps & new development for 26 years provides me with rounded knowledge of the 
	Text8: planning process. 
	Text9: 


